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BEFORE THE
. BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Second Amended Case No. 4797
Accusation Against: ,
OAH No. 2013110452
HEATHER E. LABANDEIRA GARCIA _
P.O. Box 807 T DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER

Hanford, CA 93232

Pharmacy Technician Registration No, TCH | [Gov, Code, §11520]
59719 _

Respondent.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On orabout September 6, 2013, Complainant Virgihia XK. Herold, in her official

| capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

filed Accusation No. 4797 against Heather E, Labandeira Garcia (Respondent) before the Board

of Pharmacy. On ot about June 9, 2014, Complainant filed a First Amended Accusation, Onor

about July 23, 2014, Complainant filed a Second Amended Accusation, (Accusations attached as
Exhibit A.) ‘

2, On or about November 29, 2004, the Board of Pharma,(;y (Board) issued Pharmacy
Technician Registration No, TCH 59719 to Respondent, The Pharmacy Technician Registration
was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No, 4797

and expired on August 31, 2014,
1
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3. Onor about September 26, 2013, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class
Mail copies of the Accusation No, 4797, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defenge, Requeﬁt B
for ]jiscovery, and Discovery Statutes (Government Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6, and
11507.7) at Respondent's address of record which, pursuant to Business and Professions Code
section 4100, is required to be reported and maintained with the Board. Respondent's address of
record was and is: PO, Box 807, Hanford, CA 93232, '

4,  Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law ﬁnder_the provisions of
Government Code section 11505, subdivision (¢) and/or Business & Professions Code section
124, |

5. Onorabout October 3, 2013, Respondent signed and returned a Notice of Defense,
requesting a hearing in this matter, A Notice of Hearing was served by mail at Respondent's
address of record and it informed her that an administrative heating in this matter was scheduled
for August 12, 2014, At the request of Respondent, the Notice of Hearing was also served by
mail at 1366 Cortner Street, Hanford, CA 93230, That Notice of Hearing came back with a
forwarding address of 467. Persimmon Drive, Brentwood, CA, 94513, which is the address used
to again serve the Notice of Hearing,

Respondent failed to appear at that hearing,

6,  Govemnmeni Code section 11506 states, in pertinont part:

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to 4 hearing on the merits if the respondent
files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts
of the accusation not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall
constitute a waiver of respond{:nt's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion
may nevertheless grant a hearing,

7. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part:

(a) Ifthe respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the
hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions
or upon other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to

- respondent.

8.  Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds
Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on the
relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Bvidence Packet in this matter, as well as
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taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained therein on

file at the Board's offices regarding the allegations contained in Second Amended Accusation No.

4797, finds that the charges and allegations in Second Amended Accusation No, 4797, are

separately and severally, found to be true and correct by clear and convincing evidence,

9. Taking official notice of its own internal records, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 125.3, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation
and Enforcement is $4,122.00 as of July 30, 2014,

| DETERMINATION OF ISSUES

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Heather E. Labandeira Garcia
has subjected her Pharmacy Technician Registration No, TCH 59719 to discipline.

2. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default,

3. The Board of Pharmacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Pharmacy Technician
Registration based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported
by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Bvidence Packet in this case:

a.  Business and Profession Code section 4301(1) - Criminal Convictions

b.  Business and Professions Code section 4301(h) — Use of Controlled Substances in a

Manner Dangerous or Injurious to Oneself and Others

i
it
i
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ORDER

IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 59719, heretofore
issued to Respondent Heather E. Labandeira Garcia, is revoked.

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (¢), Respondent may serve a
written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within
seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may
vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute.

This Decision shall become effective on December 3, 2014,

It is so ORDERED November 3, 2014.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

/4(. Lo
y

STAN C. WEISSER
Board President

B

1152755%.DOC
DOJ Matter ID:SA2013111876

Attachment: , .
Exhibit A: Accusation, First Amended Accusation, Second Amended Accusation
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California
JANICE K., LACHMAN

Supervising Deputy Attorney General
IKAREN R. DENVIR

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No, 197268

1300 | Street, Sulte 125

P.O. Box 944255

Sacramento, CA 94244-2550

Telephone: (916) 324.5333

Facsﬂnile: (916) 327-8643 .
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORFE, THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Second Amended Case No. 4797
Accusation Against: '

HEATHER E, LABANDEIRA GARCIA
P, O. Box 807 SECOND AMENDED
Hanford, CA 93232 :
ACCUSATION
Pharmacy Technician Reglstratlon No. TCH
59719

Respondent.

Affairs,

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. . Viginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Second Amended Accusation solely in her

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer

ﬁegistration Nurnber TCH 59719 to Heather E. Labandeira Garcia (Respondent), The Pharmacy
Technician Registration was in full force -and effoot at all times relevant to the charges Brought
herein and will expire on August 31, 2014, unless renewed,

i

i

2. Onor about November 29, 3004, the Board ot Pharmady issiiéd Phérmacy Techiciin
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JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought befors the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of

Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the

Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

4, Section 4300 of the Code states, In pertinent part;

(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked,

(b} The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose
default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty,
by any of the following methods: :

(1) Suspending judgment,

(2) Placing him or her upon probation,

(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a petiod not exceeding one year,

(4) Revoking his or her license.

(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him ot her as the board in its
discretion may deern proper, '

5. Section 4300.1 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by
operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement
of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee
shall not deptive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render
a decision suspending or revoking the license. | :

6. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

The board shall take action against eny holder of a license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation ot issued by mistake, Unprofessional condnct shall include, but is

not limited to, any of the following:

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any
dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be
dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or
to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of
the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license.

Second Amended Acousation
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(I) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter, The record of conviction of a violation of
Chapter 13 {commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code
regulating controlled substances or of g violation of the statutes of this state regulating
controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of
unprofessional conduct, In all other cases, the record of convigtion shall be conclusive
evidence only of the fact that the convietion occurred. The board may inquire into the
circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of
discipline or, in the case of & conviction not Involving controlled substances or
dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related
to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter, A plea or
verdict of guilty or a conviction following & plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a
conyiction within the meaning of this provision. The board may take action when the

. time for appea! has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on
appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of
sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code
allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not
guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information,
or indictment,

7. Section 4022 of the Code states

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe for
self-use in humans or animals, and includes the following:

() Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution; federal law prol'iibits dispensing without
prescription,” "Rx only,” or words of similar import,

(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution: federal law restricts this device to
sale by or on the order of a S "Ry only," or words of similar import, the
blank to be filled in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use or order
use of the device, :

(¢} Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully dispensed
only on preseription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006,

8.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

‘For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and
Professions Code, a erime or act shall be considered substantially related to the
qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial dogree
it evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the

- —- funciions authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent with the

public health, safety, or welfare.

COST RECOVERY

9. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a jicentiate found to have committed a violation ot violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

enforcement of the case.

Second Amended Accusation
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DRUGS AT ISSUE
10, Zolpidem tartrate (brand name “Ambien”) is a dangerous rcirug within the meaning of |
Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule IV controlled substance as
designated by Health and Safety Code section 11457, subdivision (d)(32).
11, Carisoprodol (brand name “Soma™) is a dangerous drug within the meaning of
Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is & Schedule IV controlied substance under
Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(17).

12.  Hydrocodone and acetaminophen (brand name *Norco™) s g dangerous drug within

| the meaning of Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule Y11 conirolled

substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11056, subdivision (e)(4).

13.  Meprobamate is a dangerous drug within the meaning of Business and Professions
Code seetion 4022 and is a Schedule IV controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety
Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(18). '

14, Hydromorphone is a derivative of morphine and is a dangerous drug within the
méaning of Business and Professions Code section 4022, and is a Schedule IT controlled -
substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11055, subdivision (b)(1)(1).

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Criminal Conviction)

15, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Code section 4301,
subdivision (1), in that-Respondent was convicted of crimes which are substantially related to the
qualifications, functions and duties of a licensed pharmacy technician, as follows:

4. On or about June 13, 2014, in the case of Peaple v, Heather Elizabeth Gareia, aka

- Heather Labandeira, {Super, Ct.Kings County, 2014, Case No, 14CM 95_43_), Respondent was

convicted by the Court on her plea of nolo contendere of violating Vehicle Code section 23152(a)
(driving while under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or their combined influence), a
misdemeanor, The circumstances of the orime are as follows: On or about November 5, 2013, at
approximately 10;57 p.m., Hanford Police Officer N.A. was dispatched to a traffic collision at
Simas school in Hanford, W]_men the officer arrived, he observed the Respondent’s vehicle was on

the sidewallk and had pushed the school fence in, Respondent stated that while driving from her

4
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dad’s house she had lost control of her vehicle. While speaking with Respondent, the officer
noticed her speech was slurred, end Respondent stated that she had consumed an alcoholic.
cocktail that afternoon and Ambien earlier that night. Respondent failed the field sobriety tests
administered by the officer, and a biood sample revealed that Respondent had alcohol and
zolpidem (Ambien) in her system,

b.  Onorabout August 16, 2013, in the case of People v. Heather Elizabeth Gardia, aka
Heather Labandeira, (Super, Ct. Kings County, 2013, Case No. 13CM1669), Respondent was
convicted by the Court on her plea of nolo contendere of vielating Vehicle Code section 23152(a)
(driving while under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or their.combined influence), a
misdemeanor, The crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a
licensed pharmacy technician, The circumstances are as follows: On or about March 8, 2013,
officers were dispatched to Respondent’s residence regarding a traffic collision involving
Respondent. Respondent’s husband stated that Respondent was under the influence of a narcotic
and left the scene afier striking a parked white pick-up, A check of the area turned up negative
for any type of collision involving Respondent’s vehicle, however, the officer contacted
Respondent, who was sitting in her vehicle with the-ignition on and passed out behind the Wbeel-
While speaking with Respondent, the officer noticed her speech was slurred, and Respondent
stated that she had taken some Soma. Respeondent failed the field sobristy tests administered by
the officer, and a blood sémple revealed that Respondent had hydrocodone in her system,
| SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Use of Controlled Substances or Dangerous Drugs to the Extent or in
a Manner Dangerous or Injurious to Oneself and Others)

16, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Code section 4301,
subdivision (h}, in that Respondent used controlied substances and dangerous drugs to the extent

or in a manner dangerous ot injurious to herself, others, and the public, as set forth in paragraph

- 13, above, @idras set forthibelow: = 0o e e e

a.  Onorabout Aupust 22, 2012, Hanford police officers initiated a traffic stop of
Respondent’s vehicle for failing to stop at a marked limlf line, The officers notioed that
Respondent had red/watery eyes, her speech was slow and slurred. Respondent stated that she
hadn't consumed any aleohol, but had taken one Soma pill and one Norco pill. Officers

administered field sobriety tests, which Respondent failed.” A blood sample revealed that

3
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Jhydromorphone, citalopram, and zolpidem,

costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Profossions Code

Respendent had the follewing substances in her system; cerisoprodol, mebtcbamate,

b,  Onorabout September 11, 2012, & Hanford pelice officer was dispatohed to
Respondent’s resldence for 2911 hang up, Dispatch called the numbey back and advlsed they
oould hear a female yelling for help, Respfmdent‘s husband told the offlcet that hls wife takes
Noreo and Soma for paln, but tekes muoh- more than prescribed In order to get high,
Respondent’s husband stated he was trying to keep her from leaving the residence beoanse
Réspcndent had recently driven under the influence of her medication, Respondent told the
officor that she had taken one Soma and one Norco, While speaking fo Resmndent, the officer
notlced she had droopy eyelids, very slurred spesch, and had difficulty standing on her feet. The
officer performed a drug influence svaluation and defermined that Respondent was wnder the
Influence of a controlled subsiance, specifically, CNC depressants, A blood sample revesled that
Réspondent had hydrocodone atid hydromorphone in her system. The amount of hydrocodone
was 17 mgfl, and the effective level ls 002,05,

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant tequests that a »hearinglbe held on the matters hereln alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue o declsion:

1. Revoking or sugpending Pharmacy Technivian Registiation Number TCH 59719,
issued 10 Heather B, Labandeira Garcla.;

2. Orderinp Heather E. Labandeira Garcia to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable

soction 125.3;
- - Taking such other and further aotian as dcemed neces;i?/ and plopm'

DATED: :11/25//‘/

Board of‘Pharmany .
Department of Consumer Afiblrs
Stale of Callibrala

Completnant

Becond Amendod Accusation
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- Supervising Deputy Attorney General

KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
JANICE K, LACHMAN

KAREN R, DENVIR

Deputy Attornegy General

State Bar No, 197268
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244.2550
Telephone: (916) 324-5333
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643

Atrorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THF.
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation | Case No, 4797

Affairs,

|

Against: '
HEATHER E. LABANDEIRA GARCIA
P. O. Box 807 FIRSTAMENDED ACCUSATION
Hanford, CA 93232 :
Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH
59719
Respondent. |
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this First Amended Accusation solely in her

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer

2. On or about November 29, 2004, the Board of Pharmacy issied Pharmacy Technlcian |
Registration Number TCH 59719 to Heather E. Labandeira Garcia (Respondent). The Pharmacy
Technician Registration was in ful] force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought

herein and will expire on August 31, 2014, uniess renewed.

i
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3, This Accusation ls brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Depertment of
Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the

Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated,
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4,  Section 4300 of the Code states, in pertinent patt:

(&) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked.

(b) The hoard shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose
defanlt has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty,
by any of the following methods:

' (1) Suspending judgment,

{2) Placing him or her vpon probation,
(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a period not exceeding one vear,
(4) Revoking his or her license.

(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in its
discretion may deem proper.

5. Section 4300.1 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by
operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement
of a license on a retired status, or the veluntary surrender of a license by a !icensee
shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding dgainst, the licensee or o render
a decision suspending or revoking the license,

6,  Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

~ The beard shall take action against eny holder of a license who is guilty of

unprofessional conduct or whosg license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is
not Iimited 10, any of the following:

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any
dangerous drug or of aleoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be
dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a leense under this chapter, or
to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of
the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license.

Firgt Amended Accusation
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() The conyiction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a viclation of
Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code
regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating
controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of
unprofessional conduct, In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive
evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into the
circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of
discipline or, in the case of a conviction not invoiving controlled substances or
dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related

to the qualifications, functions, and duties of & licensee under this chapter. A plea or

verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contenclers is deemed to be a
convictlon within the meaning of this provision. The board may take action when the
time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on
appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of
senfence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code
allowing the person to withdraw his ot her plea of gullty and to enter a plea of not
guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information,
or indictment.

7. Section 4022 of the Code states

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe for
self-use in humans or animals, and includes the following:

(8) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits dispénsing without
prescription," "Rx only," or words-of similar import.

(b) Any device that bears the statement; "Caution: federal law restricts this device to
sale by or on the order of a " "Rx only," or words of similar import, the
blank to be filled in with the designation of the practttioner licensed to use or order
use of the device,

(¢) Any other drug or device that by federel or state law can be lawfully dispensed
only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006,

8. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Divislon 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and
Professions Code, a crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the
qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree
it eviderices present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the

- functions authorized by his license or registration in.a manner consistent with the

public health, safety, or welfare,
COST RECOVERY

9, Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pettinent part, that the Board may request the

administrative law judge to dlrect a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

enforcement of the case.

First Amended Accusation
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DRUGS AT ISSUE

10, Zolpidem tartrate (brand name “Ambien”) is a dangerous drug within the meaning of
Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule TV controlled substance as
designa‘ted. by Health and Safety Code section 11037, subdivision (d)(32),

11.  Carisoprodo] (brand name “Soma”) is a dangsrous drug within the meaning of
Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule 1V controlled substance under
Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(17).

12.  Hydrocodone and aoetaminopheﬁ (brand name “Norce™) is a dangerous drug within
the meaning of Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule IT1 controlled
substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11056, subdivision (€)(4).

13. Meprobamate is a dangerous.drug within the meaning of Business and Professions
Code section 4022 and is a Schedule TV controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety
Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(18).

14.  Hydromorphone is a dertvative of morphine and is a dangerous drug within the
meaning of Business and Professions Code section 4022, and is a Schedule 11 controlled

substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 110535, subdivision (b)(1)(D).

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Criminal Conviction)

15,  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Code section 4301,

subdivision (I}, in that on or about August 16, 2013, in the case of People v. Heather Flizabeth

Garcia, aka Heather Labandeira, (Super. Ct, Kings County, 2013, Case No. 13CM1669),

Respondent was convicted by the Court on her plea of nolo contendere of violating Vehicle Code

| section 23152(a) (driving while under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or their combined

influence), a misdemeanor, The crime is substantinlly related to the gualifications, functions or
duties of a licensed pharmacy technician, The circumstances are as follows:

16,  On or about March 8, 2013, officers were dispatched to Respondent’s residence
regarding a traffic collision involving Respondent. Respondent’s husband stated that Respondent
was under the influence of a narcotic and left the scene after striking a parked white pick-up. A

check of the area turned up negative for any type of collision involving Respondent’s vehicle,

4
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however, the officer contacted Rospondent, who was sitting in her vehicle with the ignition on
and passed out behind the wheel. While speaking with Respondent, the officer noticed her speech |-
was slurred, and Respondent stated that she had taken some Soma. Respondent failed the field
sobriety tests administered by the officer, and a blood sample revealed that Respondent had
hydrocodone in her system,

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Use of Controlled Subsiances or Dangerous Drugs to the Extent or in
a Manner Dangerous or Injurious to Oneself and Others)

17.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Code section 4301,
subdivision (h), in that Respondent used controlled substances and dangerous drugs to the extent
or in a manner dangerous or inj’ﬁrious to herself, others, and the public, as set forth below,

a,  Onorabout August 22, 2012, Hanford police officers inltiated a traffic stop of
Respondent’s vehicle for failing {o stop at a marked limit line. The officers noticed that
Respondent had red/watery eyes, her speech was slow and slurred. Respondent stated that she
hadn’t consumed any alcohol, but had taken one Soma pill and one Norco pil}, Officers
administered field sobricty tests, which Respondent failed. A blood sample revealed that
Respondent had the following substances in her system: carisoprodol, meprobamate,
hydromorphone, citalopram, and zolpidem,

b.  Onor about Beptember 11, 2012, a Hanford pollee officer was dispatched to
Respondent’s residence fora 911 hang up, Pispatch called the number back and advised they
could hear a female yelling for help, Respondent’s husband told the officer that his wife takes
Norco and Soma for pain, but takes much more than prescribed in order to get high,

Respondent’s husband stated he was trying to keep her from leaving the residence because

| Respondent had recently driven under the influenee.-of her medication, Respondent told the

officer that she had taken one Soma and one Norco, While speaking to Respondent, the officer
noticed she had droopy eyellds, very shurred speech, and had difficulty standing on her feet, The
officer performed a drug influence evaluation and determined that Respondent was under the

influence of a controlled substance, specifically, CNC depressants, A blood sample revealed that

First Amended Accusation




(¥

0
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
8
19
20
21

22 |l
23 )

24

23

26
21
28

a0 W N

LR e R =

Respondent had hydrocodone and hydromorphone in her system. The amount of hydrocodone
was .17 mg/L, and the effective level is ,002-.05,
. PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainaut requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Régistration Number TCH 59719,
lssued to Heather E, Labandeira Garcia,;

2. Ordering Heather E. Labandeira Garcia fo pay the Boerd of Pharmacy the reasonable
costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professlons Code
section 125.3;

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.
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VIRG HEROLD

Exeout fficer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

BAZ013111876
11144763.doe
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KAMALA D, HARRIS -
Attorney General of California
IANICE K, LACHMAN
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
KAREN R. DENVIR
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 197268
1300 1 Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 942442550
Telephone: (916) 324-5333
Facsimile: (916)327-8643
Attorneys for Complainani

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

\

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 4797
HEATHER E. LABANDEYRA GARCIA
P. O. Box 807

Hanford, CA 93232 ACCUSATION

Pliarmacy Technician Registration No. TCH
59719 ' '

Respondent.

Cormplainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capaciiy
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs.
2. On or about November 29, 2004, the Board of Pharmacy issved Pharmacy Tecﬁnician

Registration Number TCH 59719 to Heather E. Labandeira Garcia (Respondent), The Pharmacy

|| Technician Registration was i full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought

herein and will expire on August 31, 2014, unless renewed,
JURISPICTION
3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

1.
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4,  Section 4300 of the Ccde states, in pertinent part:

(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked.

(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose
default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty,
by any of the following methods:

(1) Suspending judginent.

(2) Placing him or her upon probation,

* (3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a period not exceeding one year,

(4) Revoking his or her license,

(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in its
discretion may deem praper.

s Section 4300.1 of the Code states;

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by
operation of law or by order of decision of the board or a court of law, the placement
of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee
shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to rendet
a decision suspending or revoking the license. :

6. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake, Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is
not limited to, any of the following; '

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any
dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner s io be
dangerous or injutlous to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapier, or
to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of
the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license,

"~ 7. Section 4022 of the Code states

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe for
self-use in humans or animals, and Includes the following: -

(8) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits dispensing without
prescra;tion, " '"Rx only," or words of similar import, .

(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution: federal law restricts this device to
sale by or on the order of' a " "Rot only," or words of similar import, the

2
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blank to be fitled in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use or order
use of the device,

(c) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully dispensed
only on preseription or furnished pursiant to Section 4006,

8. California Code of Rogulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and
Professions Code, a crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the
qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree
It evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the
functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent with the
public health, safety, or welfare.

COST RECOVERY.

9,  Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of

the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

enforcement of the case.

'DRUGS AT ISSUE

10.  Zolpldem tartrate (brand name “Ambien™) is a dangerous drug within the meaning of |

Business and Professions Code séction 4022 and is a Schedule IV controlled substance as
designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(32).

I1.  Carisoprodol (brand name “Soma”) is ardangerous drug within the meaning of
Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule IV controlled substance under
Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(17).

12, Hydrocodone and acsteimlnophen (brand name “Norco”) is a dangerous drug within

the meaning of Business and Professions Code section 4022 and is a Schedule I controlled

“substance as designated by Health-and Safety Code section 11056, subdiviston (e)(4).

13.  Meprobamate is a dangerous drug within the meaning of Business and Professlons
Code section 4022 and is a Schedule IV controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety
Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(] 8). '
i
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14.  Hydromorphone is a derivative of morphine and is a dangerous drug within the
meaning of Business and Professions Code section 4022, and is a Schedule II controlled
substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11055, subdivision (b)(1)(J).

CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Use of Controlled Substances or Dangerous Drugs to the Extent or in a Manner
Dangerous or Injurious to Oneself and Others)

15, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Code sectlon 4301,
subdivision (h), in that Respondent used controlled substances and dangerous drugs to the extent
or in a manner dangerous or injurious to herself, others, and the public, as set forth below,

a,  Onorebout August 22, 2012, Hanford police officers initiated a traffic stop of
Respondent’s vehicle for failing to stop at a marked limit line. The officers noticed that
Respondent had red/watery eyes, her speech was slow and slurred. Respondent stated that she
hadn't consumed any alsohol, but had taken one Soma pill and one Norco pill, Officers
administered field sobriety tests, which Respondent failed. A blood sample revealed that
Respondent had the following substances in her system; carisoprodol, meprobamate,
hydromorphone, citalopram, and zolpidem.

b.  Onorabout September 11, 2012, a Hanford police officer was dispatched to
Respondent’s residence fora 911 hang up. Dispatch called the number back and advised they
could hear a female yelling for help. Respondent’s hwnsband told the officer that bis wife takes
Norco and Soma for pain, but takes much more than preseribed in order to get high,
Respondent’s husband stated he was (rying to keep her from leaving the residence because
Respondenf had recently driven under the influence of her medication, Respondent told the

officer that she had taken one Soma and one Norco. While speaking to Respondent, the officer

noticed she had droopy eyelids, very slurred speech, and had difficulty standing on her feet. The 17

officer perfoimed a drug influence evaluation and determined that Respondent was under the
influence of a controlled substance, specifically, CNC depfcssants. A blood sample revealed that
Respondent had hydrocodone and hydromorphone in her system. "The amount of hydrocodone
was .17 mg/L, and the -effec.tive level is ,002-,05,
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¢.  On or about March 8, 2013, officers were dispatched to Respoﬁdent’s rosidence .

regarding a traffic collision involving Respondent. Respondent’s husband stated that Respondent

| was under the influence of a narcotic and left the scene after striking a parked white pick-up, A

check of the area furned up negative for any type of collision involving Respondent’s vehicle,
however, the officer contacted Responc!ent, who was sitﬁng in her vehicle with the ignition on
and passed out behind the wheel, While speeking with Respondent, the officer noticed her speech
was siurred, and Respondent stated that she had taken some Soma, Respondent failed the field
sobriety tests administered by the officer, and a blood sample revealed that Respondent h;a.d
hydrocodons in her system.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complatnant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmﬁcy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Techmclan Reglistration Number TCH 59719,
issued to Heathcr E. Labandeira Garcia.,

2. Ordering Heather E, Labandeira Garcia to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable
costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Pr ofessmns Code
section 125.3;

3, Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper,

DATED: | q/(o /!3 / >{,{P a!;/u‘_e_w

X ' “UIRGINLA HEROLD !
Executhvé Officer
Board of Pharmacy |
Department of Consumer A ffaifs
State of Califarnia
Complainant

SAZ0131118%
11144763 doc
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